
1

Notice of a meeting of
Appointments and Remuneration Committee

Monday, 29 January 2018
6.00 pm

Municipal Offices, Promenade, Cheltenham, GL50 9SA

Membership
Councillors: Rowena Hay (Chair), Chris Coleman (Vice-Chair), Flo Clucas, 

Bernard Fisher, Wendy Flynn, Colin Hay, Chris Mason, 
Malcolm Stennett and Jon Walklett

The Council has a substitution process and any substitutions will be announced at the 
meeting

Agenda 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

3. APPROVE MINUTES OF LAST MEETING
Minutes of the meeting held on 7 December 2017.

(Pages 
3 - 6)

4. EXECUTIVE BOARD RESTRUCTURE - FORMAL 
CONSULTATION FEEDBACK
Report of the Chief Executive

(Pages 
7 - 36)

5. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THE CHAIR DETERMINES IS 
URGENT AND REQUIRES A DECISION

6. DATE OF NEXT MEETING (IF NECESSARY)
5 March 2018.

Contact Officer:  Rosalind Reeves, Democratic Services Manager, 
Email: democratic.services@cheltenham.gov.uk

mailto:democratic.services@cheltenham.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -
Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 5 March 2018.

Appointments and Remuneration Committee

Thursday, 7th December, 2017
6.15  - 6.50 pm

Attendees
Councillors: Rowena Hay (Chair), Wendy Flynn and Colin Hay
Also in attendance: Julie McCarthy and Pat Pratley
Apologies: Councillor Malcolm Stennett and Councillor Jon Walklett

Minutes

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies were received from Councillors Stennett and Walklett.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

3. APPROVE MINUTES OF LAST MEETING
The minutes of the meeting held on 3 July 2017 were approved and signed as a 
correct record.

4. EXECUTIVE BOARD RESTRUCTURE
The Chief Executive introduced the report and explained that upon her 
appointment as Chief Executive by Council in July 2017 she was given a 
mandate to review the senior leadership of CBC. The report presented a 
proposal for the review of the executive board.  It was important that the senior 
leadership foundation was strong and the report contained an assessment of 
what she considered to be strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats at 
the current time. 

The Chief Executive went on to say that there were some extremely good 
things; a strong focus on place, a committed and ambitious team, service 
modernisation and transformation happening but only in part of the authority 
and strong partnerships and relations with partners continuing to be developed.  
However, what was missing within the combined executive board leadership 
was a “whole authority” view. She felt like there were currently two 
organisations within one, and it was her job to bring it back together, to give it 
coherence for the future, so that the priorities Members had set could be 
delivered with an executive team which was clear on accountability, purpose 
and delivery. She therefore saw one of her key roles as “knitting the 
organisation together”.  She acknowledged that the staff were doing a fantastic 
job under extremely difficult circumstances, not least the continuing financial 
pressures, but believed if the issues were not addressed or opportunities seized 
now that the authority  would be in a much weaker position in the future and 
would not achieve its  full potential.

The report articulated not just the structure of executive board but how she 
expected the executive board to operate; not with single directorates in mind but 

Page 3
Agenda Item 3



- 2 -
Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 5 March 2018.

taking a whole authority view.  Clarity on accountabilities was important as was 
a culture of collaboration; between ourselves, between partners and between 
staff all with the objective of achieving better outcomes for Cheltenham.

She felt that currently the less strong voice  from the executive team table was 
about people (staff and customers), the drive to modernise how we work in the 
future and the culture we wanted for this authority.  She highlighted that the key 
enablers for change were our people, our technology and our culture and these 
were the key areas of focus for the proposed new role.

The Chief Executive highlighted that the focus on staff was hugely important to 
her personally and she referred to the fact that the council was an accredited 
investors in people organisation. She wanted to be able to give staff the 
development opportunities they needed and deserved, grow our own talent as 
far as possible and create talent pathways, have jobs that are potentially 
broader but hopefully more interesting, reward in a way that was affordable and 
in a way that recognised the contributions made.  She wanted the authority to 
be an “employer of choice” and be better than those around us and to attract 
new talent as well as an authority staff felt proud to be part of.

She felt that increasing capacity in the short term was also crucial whilst the 
structure of the organisation was being examined. She pointed out that, based 
on the business case outlined in the report, the proposal was for the Director of 
Corporate Resources and Projects to flexibly retire but continue in a transitional 
role to deliver key corporate projects for a period of 2 years. She highlighted 
that if the organisation was to deliver what was currently on the agenda, and 
also embrace and resource organisational change and modernise the authority, 
then the additional capacity for a set period of time was absolutely crucial.

The Chief Executive reported that she had spoken to a number of staff about 
the proposed structure including those directly affected and they were 
supportive of the vision..  She had shared the proposals with trade union 
colleagues and again they were very supportive of what was wished to be 
achieved through this review of the executive board leadership.  She had also 
received feedback from staff that they welcomed the openness and 
transparency of sharing the proposals with them and, subject to this meeting, 
she would be holding some drop-in sessions for staff the following week.

She was aware that change was always daunting and she did not want staff to 
worry about the future but she was absolutely clear that change was necessary.  
Her commitment to the staff, and also to Members, was that there would be 
engagement and involvement going forward. 

Finally, the Chief Executive expressed how she was personally excited about 
the future, the authority was already a great place to work, staff were a hugely 
talented and committed group of people who had a strong affinity with 
Cheltenham as a place, and these were strong foundations on which to build 
upon.

Members welcomed the proposal to remove silo working and adopt a whole 
authority approach particularly as there was more cross-over now the 
organisation was slimmer. They recognised that whilst for some people change 
was difficult if this didn’t happen then the organisation would not be sustainable. 
The Chief Executive said that the aim was for each Director to have a role to 

Page 4



- 3 -
Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 5 March 2018.

play in contributing to the MTFS and that it should be owned as a board as a 
whole rather than being the burden of the new role Director of Finance and 
Assets. The trade unions in particular had taken a positive view as to the 
openness on how the organisation was aiming to be financially sustainable 
following the forward thinking presentation given to them by the Chief Finance 
Officer.   

The Chief Executive added that she had been working closely with senior 
officers from Publica on organisational development and the two organisations 
were on a similar pathway. Publica would also be important going forward in 
supporting CBC through ICT and human resources.  

Members recognised that if CBC did not stay ahead of the game there was a 
risk that people would be lost to Publica. The Chief Executive added that at the 
same time staff could potentially get experience in Publica via secondment. She 
said that the model for CBC could be a testbed for Publica by highlighting that 
not many councils wished to join Publica wholescale and if the model worked 
for CBC this could be a good example.

A Member asked what kind of person the Chief Executive was looking for in the 
Executive Director People and Change as he was not sure whether the focus 
was currently right in terms of stronger communities and interacting with people 
and customers. The Chief Executive stated that the candidate should have 
organisational change experience and in a number of disciplines and be 
passionate about people receiving the best services and passionate about 
communities as well as understanding that change was about people.

In response to a question about timeline the Head of Human Resources said 
that there would now be formal consultation on the proposal which would 
conclude in mid January at which point a formal report would be brought back to 
Appointments and Remuneration Committee and would then be submitted to 
Council in February. In terms of when the Director People and Change would 
be in post this would depend very much on the notice period of the postholder 
but was envisaged to be around June/July time.

Members felt strongly that the advert for the Director post should be posted 
nationally. The Strategic HR Manager  confirmed that this was a Member 
appointment and it was proposed that a headhunting approach be adopted via 
recruitment consultants  This would give the Chief Executive the advantage of 
stipulating the type of candidate which she was seeking. The Chief Executive 
added that this was a hugely important role and if anyone locally wished to put 
themselves forward for the role they would not be put off by the proposed 
recruitment process.

The Chief Executive confirmed that the report before Members had already 
been shared with Group Leaders and the Chair confirmed she had received 
positive feedback from the PAB Group Leader via email.

RESOLVED THAT

1. the management restructure proposals as set out in Section 9 and 
Appendix 4 of this report be approved for the purposes of formal 
consultation with Executive Board

Page 5



- 4 -
Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 5 March 2018.

2. it be noted that the Chief Executive intends to commence 
consultation on 8 December 2017

3. a further report on the management restructure proposals 
following completion of the formal consultation be received.

5. DATE OF NEXT MEETING (IF NECESSARY)
Monday 29 January 2018

Rowena Hay
Chairman

Page 6



Page 1 of 12 Last updated 19 January 2018

Cheltenham Borough Council

Appointments and Remuneration Committee – 29 January 2018

Executive Board Restructure – Formal Consultation Feedback

Accountable member Appointments and Remuneration Committee

Accountable officer Pat Pratley, Chief Executive

Ward(s) affected None Directly

Key/Significant 
Decision

Yes

Executive summary At its meeting on 7 December 2017 this committee approved, for the 
purposes of formal consultation with those directly affected, the Executive 
Board restructure proposals as set out in section 1.2 of this report.  The 
formal consultation process ended on 7 January 2018 and this report 
provides an update on the feedback received and requests the committee 
to 

 Approve the Executive Board Structure as set out in section 1.2 and in 
detail at Appendix 2 and the key accountabilities at Appendix 4.

 Authorise the Chief Executive to conduct the processes for recruitment to 
the new post of Executive Director – People and Change and set up a 
Sub-Committee to appoint to that post

In addition, this committee is requested to recommend to Council the 
creation of the new Executive Board structure.

The report also updates Members on the proposals for dealing with the 
feedback received through the formal consultation process.

Recommendations The committee is recommended to

1. Approve the Executive Board structure as set out in section 1.2 and 
Appendix 2  of this report with Executive Director remuneration being at 
salary grade 3 in accordance with the authority’s existing Chief Officer 
salary grade structure.

2. Approve the key accountabilities for the Executive Directors and the 
Director of Corporate Projects at Appendix 4 and agree, subject to Council 
approving the creation of the new Executive Board structure, that the 
affected employees be appointed to those posts as set out in section 5.1.

3. Authorise the Chief Executive, in consultation with the Committee 
Chairman, to establish and implement the process for the recruitment to the 
post of Executive Director – People and Change.

Page 7
Agenda Item 4



Page 2 of 12 Last updated 19 January 2018

4. Constitute a Sub-Committee for the appointment of the post of Executive 
Director – People and Change with the terms of reference set out in section 
6.3.
5. Recommend to Council the creation of the new Executive Board structure 

6. Authorise the Chief Executive to take such actions and decisions as are 
necessary to facilitate the above recommendations.

Financial implications As detailed in paragraph 4.4.4, the cost of these proposals amount to 
£188,426 and can be funded via the Pension and Restructuring earmarked 
reserve. This cost is less than the indicative compulsory redundancy cost of 
£219,870, whilst also providing for much needed additional temporary 
resource for the period this transition period relates.

Paragraph 4.3.4 highlights the potential for increased costs as a result of 
formal job evaluation. Whilst any back-dated element can be funded via the 
Pension and Restructuring earmarked reserve, it is anticipated that any 
permanent uplift will be incorporated into the base budget from 2019/20. 
This would be considered as part of the overall cost envelope for the entire 
management structure which is anticipated to be concluded by December 
2018.

Paul Jones, Chief Finance Officer
Paul.jones@cheltenham.gov.uk; 01242 775154

Legal implications The appointment to director posts as referenced in within this report falls 
within the remit of Appointments and Remuneration Committee which may 
delegate to a sub-committee.  The appointing body must include at least 
one Cabinet Member from the committee.  The Employment Rules must be 
followed which include inter alia the requirement, prior to appointing (or 
dismissing) directors, to consult with the Leader and Cabinet.

Contact officer: Peter Lewis, Head of Law (One Legal)
Peter.Lewis@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 01684 272012

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development) 

The report covers the outcome of the formal consultation process with 
individuals, the Chief Executive  response to comments raised and some 
recommendations for the committee regarding the individuals in scope.

Contact officer: Julie McCarthy, Strategic HR and Client Manager 
(Publica)
Julie.McCarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk; 01242 264355

Page 8



Page 3 of 12 Last updated 19 January 2018

Key risks The key risks remain as the 7 December 2017 committee report and as 
stated arise out of the SWOT analysis and are again outlined below and 
assessed at Appendix 1

 The need to address the strategic capacity and skills in relation to 
service modernisation and organisational development (values, 
behaviours, skills, competencies) and for a whole authority approach to 
be taken.

 Addressing the issues created through the return of services to the 
authority which means some service groupings are not now logically 
placed, duplication of effort at Executive Board level can occur in some 
areas and capacity to deliver key corporate projects is lessened.

 Achieving financial sustainability.

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications

The ability to be able to effectively deliver the authority’s ambitions has been 
fundamental to informing this review and of particular focuses has been the 
authority’s ambition for Cheltenham in terms of “place”.  The proposed 
Executive Board structure also addresses the need to transform and 
modernise how our people work and ensure that the authority is fit for 
purpose as a 21st century local authority and has a sustainable financial 
future.

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications

The proposed Place and Growth directorate will continue to make a key 
contribution to the authority’s efforts with regard to environmental issues and 
climate change and will continue to do so under the proposals outlined 
within this report.  The Finance and Assets directorate will also continue to 
ensure that the authority’s own assets are managed in a way that pays due 
regard to the need to mitigate and combat climate change where this is 
possible and operationally and financially feasible.

Property/Asset 
Implications

There are no operational property and asset matters arising from this report.  
However, the proposed Executive Board structure recognises the 
importance of active asset management and investment in a balanced 
property portfolio to the future financial sustainability of the authority.

Page 9



Page 4 of 12 Last updated 19 January 2018

1. Background

1.1 At its meeting on 7 December 2017 this committee approved the Executive Board restructure 
proposals as outlined in Section 9 and Appendix 4 of that report for the purpose of formal 
consultation with those directly affected.  The detailed structure proposals are shown here again 
at Appendix 2 for the benefit of Members.

1.2 The proposed Executive Board structure is as follows:

 Chief Executive

 Managing Director – Place and Growth

 Executive Director – Finance and Assets (full time post, the post-holder is seconded part-
time to the Forest of Dean DC as s151 Officer)

 Executive Director – People and Change (new post)

The proposal considered by this committee in December also included for the deletion of the post 
of Director of Resources and Corporate Projects, and the creation of a new, part-time transitional 
post of Director Corporate Projects.  The proposal is that this new transitional post will report to 
the Executive Director – Finance and Assets.

Chief Executive

Managing Director -  
Place and Growth

Executive Director - 
People and Change 

(new post)

Executive Director - 
Finance and Assets

(shared post)

2. Response to the formal consultation
2.1 The formal consultation process with those directly affected ended on 7 January 2018.  Feedback 

was received from 2 of the affected post-holders and Exempt Appendices 3A and 3B outline 
the key points with Section 4 of this report aiming to summarise the key issues and potential 
implications for this review.

3. Future organisational design

3.1 Before commenting upon the responses to the formal consultation it will be worthwhile 
considering the next steps with regard to the review of the authority’s organisational structure as 
this has implications for the responses to the feedback received.

3.2 Members will be aware that when Council approved the review of the authority’s senior leadership 
team in July 2017 that reference was made to a phased approach with a subsequent phase to be 
undertaken to ensure that the “Council has the necessary capacity, skills, behaviours within the 
executive and service management organisational delivery model and budget to deliver the 
Council’s vision”.

Page 10



Page 5 of 12 Last updated 19 January 2018

3.3 Work is already underway to consider what that future service management organisational model 
could look like and a very high level initial opportunity assessment is in preparation.  The 
December 2017 report referred to the desire to create a 21st century local authority, and the need 
to transform and modernise the authority to assure a sustainable future and to modernise service 
delivery.

3.4 Whilst the work on what the future service management structure looks like is in its early stages 
there are some key principles that will, I believe, subject to affordability, underpin the future 
design; integrated technology, teams organised around the customer and activity, potentially new 
roles across the authority based on job families, broader roles with the aim of having clearer 
progression pathways, people working in multiple/informal teams, more matrix management as 
opposed to functional line management.

3.5 In addition, the future structure will need to accommodate the fact that the new Director of 
Corporate Projects role is a transitional role and the delivery of those strategic projects that will 
remain at the end of that transitional period will need to be driven forward.

3.6 It is anticipated that the future organisational design work will have been concluded by December 
2018 and whilst it is not possible to say at this point what the future design, and service 
management structure, will look like, there is a strong possibility that it could look very different 
from that of today.

3.7 Therefore this Executive Board review phase recognises the need to address the current gaps in 
skills and capabilities at the most strategic officer level within the authority in order to support the 
implementation of a new service management structure, together with having the necessary 
organisational change and organisational development approach which will be crucial to the 
authority’s future success.

4. Responses to the formal consultation

4.1 Both responses to the formal consultation acknowledged the need for change and endorsed the 
direction of travel with regard to the proposed Executive Board structure and the aspirations for 
the authority in the future.  

4.2 The main issues raised fall into 3 categories;

 Whether the proposed size and scope of the Executive Board job roles are equitable in terms 
of job grade and salary 

 Having sufficient capacity to manage the transition period between the new Executive 
Director – People and Change commencing in post and continuing to be able to deliver 
against key corporate projects

 Whether the role of Deputy Chief Executive should be formalised within one of the Executive 
Board roles

4.3 Jobs sizes and scope

4.3.1 Section 3 of this report has outlined the proposed next steps with regard to the phased approach 
to the review of the authority’s service management structure as requested by Council. 

4.3.2 As already stated, the future service management structure has not yet been fully developed, 
however, based on what we know now there is a likelihood that current staffing numbers could be 
more evenly distributed as work is organised around the customer and activity and not in service 
silos.  There is the likelihood that the current traditional functional line management relationship 
between the Executive Board and the director/service manager level could change to a more 
matrix management relationship with the Executive Board having less operational responsibility 

Page 11



Page 6 of 12 Last updated 19 January 2018

freeing them up to be able to concentrate on their roles as the most senior officer strategic 
leaders of the authority.  

4.3.3 It is acknowledged that some change in accountabilities has taken place at the Executive Board 
level principally with regard to duties previously held by myself as Deputy Chief Executive and 
which were not sustainable for me to continue to perform in either my role as Head of Paid 
Service or now as Chief Executive.  It is also acknowledged this has meant additional 
accountabilities have arisen, for the Managing Director Place and Economic Development and, in 
the proposed restructure for the Executive Director Finance and Assets.  The authority is 
undergoing a period of significant change and, as is the case with the progression of time and as 
the future strategic direction and priorities of the authority evolve, this has the potential to impact 
on job roles, size and accountabilities.

4.3.4 Also, as the authority moves forward into the delivery and implementation phase of the Joint Core 
Strategy, accountability for delivery of key strategic sites such as West Cheltenham and key 
infrastructure enabling projects such as the £22M growth deal linked to the potential for a Cyber 
Business Park, plus M5 J9 and J10 M5 upgrades will need to be addressed.  The role and focus 
of the Cheltenham Development Taskforce (CDTF) is also undergoing review with the CDTF 
Chair and key Members, and its relationship with the Place and Economic Development 
directorate is being clarified in terms of where accountability for delivery at both MD and Director-
Planning level.

4.3.5 Therefore, with regard to the feedback that the scope, size and grades of future roles does not 
seem equitable, my proposal is that this be reviewed as part of the next phase.  However, such a 
review needs to be equitable to all Executive Board members and will also be in the context of 
the organisational re-design which will have potentially wider implications for job sizes and roles 
across the authority.  Were it to be the case that any job evaluation process demonstrated that an 
increase in grading for an Executive Director was the outcome then it would be appropriate to 
consider back-dating subject to adequate budgetary provision.

4.4 Capacity to deliver

4.4.1 The Director of Resources and Corporate Projects is delivering a number of key corporate 
property-based projects including Leisure@, Depot review and the Town Hall re-development 
which are moving into their next project phases, the former into construction.  The director is also 
the sponsor for the Accommodation Strategy project.  

4.4.2 It is hoped that the recruitment process, subject to the necessary approvals, for the new 
Executive Director – People and Change will commence late February/early March and will run 
smoothly, with a new director being in post at the latest in July.  However if a delay in the 
recruitment process causes the current director’s flexible retirement to commence before the new 
director is in post, there is a risk that the momentum being maintained on some key corporate 
projects will suffer. 

4.4.3 A transition period between the new Executive Director commencing in post and the existing 
director’s flexible retirement starting would mitigate this risk.  In addition, if it were the case that a 
new appointee was in post by July a hand-over period between the current director and the new 
Executive Director would be extremely beneficial.  Such a situation would create capacity for the 
new director to understand the authority, its preparedness and readiness for change and allow 
them time to formulate their thinking with regard to the necessary organisational change and 
modernisation.  It would also give them time to have early input into, and contribute to shaping 
the development of the future organisational design/structure which will be a key element of the 
programme that they will be accountable for managing.

4.4.4 Therefore in terms of the transitional role of Director of Corporate Projects the proposal is that the 
flexible retirement commences on 1 November 2018 and ends on 31 July 2020.  This increases 
the indicative costs to the Council reported in December from £174,326 to £188,426.  This cost is 

Page 12



Page 7 of 12 Last updated 19 January 2018

still less than the compulsory redundancy cost and can be funded via the Pension and 
Restructuring earmarked reserve.

4.5 Role of deputy chief executive

4.5.1 Members will be aware that the Deputy Chief Executive post was deleted when the role of Head 
of Paid Service was created.  Members will also hopefully be aware that I have put in place 
informal arrangements whereby a member of the Executive Board is nominated on a year by 
year basis, to undertake the role for which an honorarium is paid. This arrangement has, in my 
opinion, worked well and has a number of advantages; it allows executive directors to experience 
acting in the capacity of the most senior officer within the authority (although not in the capacity of 
the statutory role of Head of Paid Service), provides them with opportunities to develop, gives 
them skills which are marketable and also builds resilience within the team.  The honorarium 
acknowledges that it is an important role.

4.5.2 My view is that when I am away from the office, Members need to be clear on their point of 
contact for matters that they would in the normal course of events have directed to the Chief 
Executive.  I also believe it is important to give senior officers opportunities to enhance their 
development and the current arrangements provide for this as well as working well for Group 
Leaders and other Members.  

4.5.3 It is not my view therefore that at this time the re-introduction of the designation of deputy 
formally within any Executive Board job description is the right approach.  However, I will keep 
this matter under review, in consultation with Group Leaders, and particularly when the next 
phase of the organisational design comes to Members for consideration. 

5. Executive board restructure - implications for affected employees

5.1 Subject to the approval of this committee to the Executive Board structure outlined in section 1.2, 
and Council approving the creation of the new structure, the implications for those directly 
affected by these proposals are as follows and are in line with the authority’s restructuring 
process guidance:

 Managing Director – Place and Economic Development – automatic appointment to the post of 
Managing Director – Place and Growth

 Chief Finance Officer – automatic appointment to the post of Executive Director – Finance and 
Assets

 Director of Resources and Corporate Projects – post-holder at risk of redundancy however the 
director has stated, through the formal consultation, that he is agreeable to be appointed to the 
new transitional role of Director Corporate Projects.

5.2 The key accountabilities for the above roles, together with the new Executive Director – People 
and Change post, can be found at Appendix 4.  Through the formal consultation process the MD 
requested that certain additions be made to the key areas of accountability within the portfolio of 
the MD Place and Growth and these are shown in red.

5.3 In light of the intention to consider the future organisational design of the authority in December it 
is recommended that the Executive Board director posts are remunerated as currently at the 
authority’s Chief Officer salary grade 3 but this be reviewed as proposed in section 4 above.

5.4 With regard to the transitional role of Director of Corporate Projects Council approval for the 
eventual redundancy of that post will be necessary at the appropriate time.

Page 13



Page 8 of 12 Last updated 19 January 2018

6. Recruitment process – executive director people and change

6.1 The Constitution provides for the Appointments and Remuneration Committee being “responsible 
for the appointment and dismissal of any Executive Officers or the Director of the Cheltenham 
Development Taskforce”.  It is being recommended that the Chief Executive be authorised, in 
consultation with the Committee Chairman, to establish and implement the process for the 
recruitment to the post of Executive Director – People and Change.

6.2. It is custom and practice from this committee to delegate to a sub-committee of this committee the 
appointment process for executive officers.  Therefore, it is being recommended that this 
committee constitute a sub-committee for the appointment of the post of Executive Director – 
People and Change within the terms of reference as set out below.

6.3 Appointments Sub-Committee

Membership
Liberal Democrat 2, Conservative 1 (note: at least one member of Cabinet from the committee 
must be included)

Remit
To be able to undertake the below functions in respect of the Executive Board restructure 
considered by the Appointments and Remuneration Committee on 29 January 2018

Functions
 To appoint directors
 To determine conditions on which Directors hold office

6.4 No recruitment process will commence until Council has approved the new Executive Board 
structure.  

7. Reasons for recommendations

7.1 As outlined within the body of this report.

8. Alternative options considered

8.1 Alternative options were outlined in the December 2017 report however the committee 
considered the proposals put forward as being in the best interests of the authority.

9. Consultation and feedback

9.1 As previously reported the proposals contained within this report have been subject to informal 
and now formal consultation with those directly affected.  The comments received from that 
consultation and my responses to them are as set out in summary at Exempt Appendix 3A and 
3B.

9.2 Consultation with trade union colleagues has taken place following the December report and they 
are supportive of the direction of travel.

10. Performance management – monitoring and review

10.1 It will be possible to report on the functioning of the new Executive Board structure when the 
proposals for the next phase of the organisational design are considered by Members towards 
the latter part of the year.  In terms of individual performance members of the Executive Board 
are subject to the authority’s performance appraisal process and their annual performance 
targets will be set and monitored in line with that policy.

Page 14



Page 9 of 12 Last updated 19 January 2018

Report author Contact officer: Pat Pratley, Chief Executive

Pat.pratley@cheltenham.gov.uk

01242 264100

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment

2. Proposed Executive Board Structure

3. Exempt Appendices 3A and 3B – Formal consultation feedback

4. Key Accountabilities

Background information 1. Appointments and Remuneration Committee Report – 7 December 
2017

Page 15



Page 10 of 12 Last updated 19 January 2018

Risk Assessment Appendix 1 

The risk Original risk score

(impact x likelihood)

Managing risk

Risk 
ref.

Risk description Risk

Owner

Date 
raised

Impact

1-5

Likeli-

hood

1-6

Score Control Action Deadline Responsible

officer

Transferred to 
risk register

1 If strategic capacity, skills 
and focus on authority-wide 
modernisation and 
organisational development 
(values, skills, 
competencies, behaviours) 
does not exist there is a 
risk that the authority will 
not be as effective and 
efficient as it might be, and 
will be less able to deliver 
against its ambitions

Pat 
Pratley

7.12.17 4 4 16 Reduce A&R Committee 
approve the 
recommendations within 
this report 

29.1.18 Pat 
Pratley

2 If the capacity issues at the 
Executive Board level are 
not addressed there is a 
risk that the authority will 
not move forward at the 
necessary pace and key 
projects will suffer delay or 

Pat 
Pratley

7.12.17 4 3 12 Reduce Transition period to 
allow the for arrival of 
the new Executive 
Director – People and 
Change

Additional capacity for a 

29.1.18 Pat 
Pratley

P
age 16



Page 11 of 12 Last updated 19 January 2018

need to be re-prioritised period of time to 
accommodate the pace 
and delivery of key 
corporate projects

3 If the authority’s financial 
strategy is not underpinned 
by the structure, 
competencies and culture 
to deliver then there is a 
risk that financial 
sustainability will not be 
secured

Pat 
Pratley

7.12.17 5 3 15 Reduce Financial sustainability 
to be collectively owned 
by the Executive Board 

Commercial strategy to 
be approved by Council 
as part of the 18-19 
budget process

Ongoing Pat 
Pratley

4 If current service groupings 
below the Executive Board 
level are not addressed this 
will continue to be 
inefficient and will not 
support the approach to 
modernising the authority’s 
services

Pat 
Pratley

7.12.17 4 3 12 Reduce A& R Committee 
approve the 
recommendations in this 
report

29.1.18 Pat 
Pratley

Explanatory notes

Impact – an assessment of the impact if the risk occurs on a scale of 1-5 (1 being least impact and 5 being major or critical)
Likelihood – how likely is it that the risk will occur on a scale of 1-6 
(1 being almost impossible, 2 is very low, 3 is low, 4 significant,  5 high and 6 a very high probability)

Control - Either: Reduce / Accept / Transfer to 3rd party / Close

P
age 17



Page 12 of 12 Last updated 19 January 2018

P
age 18



Appendix 2Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 21By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 31By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4

Proposed Executive Board – Areas of Accountability

Managing Director – Place and Growth

KEY AREAS OF ACCOUNTABILITY

 Primarily outward facing role as lead for place agenda and key related strategies; joint core 
strategy, Cheltenham Plan, housing strategy, environmental strategy, town centre plan, 
neighbourhood planning, economic growth and inward investment, public realm, sustainable 
transport, tourism, parking

 Two director reports – Environment and Planning

 Ensuring that consultation around strategic planning, eg, Cheltenham Plan, is flexible and 
responsive to the fact that communities are different and not all have bodies in place, eg, parish 
councils or neighbourhood forums through which engagement can take place

 Retains accountability for commercialisation of regulatory and environmental services, 
developing a business approach in key areas, eg, development management, licensing, car 
parking, crematorium and cemeteries.  

 Accountable for developing the Visitor and Marketing strategy and the authority’s approach to 
contributing to the wider “festival town” ambition through the creation of events which support 
the authority’s wider corporate objectives, for example, Cheltenham Cycling Festival

 Accountable for identifying and proposing the most appropriate arrangement to market 
Cheltenham as a visitor destination

 Bringing about a positive working relationship between key partners including the Chamber of 
Commerce, BID, Gloucestershire County Council, Highways Agency, Cheltenham Development 
Taskforce (CDTF), The Cheltenham Trust, Cheltenham Festivals, so that ambitions are aligned 
to secure future outcomes for Cheltenham

 Contributes to financial sustainability through the economic growth, inward investment agenda, 
services that are efficient, flexible and are operated with a commercial mind-set

 Working closely with the Managing Director of CDTF to deliver the taskforce business plan 
ambitions and also with regard to the Cyber Business Park Group and Cyber Security 
Infrastructure Group

 Executive Board commissioner lead for Ubico, Cheltenham Borough Homes

 BID Director

 Gloucestershire Airport Shareholder Representative on the Shareholder Forum (economic 
growth and governance) which means supporting the Leader in his role as shareholder

Page 33



Appendix 4

Proposed Executive Board – Areas of Accountability

Executive Director – Finance and Assets

KEY AREAS OF ACCOUNTABILITY

 Full time role – full time post, the post-holder is seconded part-time to the Forest of Dean DC as 
s151 Officer

 Line management of property services and asset management

 Line management accountability for new (part-time) post Director – Corporate Projects

 S151 Officer

 Exec Board lead for the budget strategy, financial plan, commercial strategy, treasury 
management strategy, asset management plan, commercial property investment strategy

 Contributes to financial sustainability through s151 role and driving the approach to active asset 
management and portfolio investment opportunities

 Lead commissioner for Publica (finance and procurement)

 Lead commissioner for South West Audit Partnership

 Ubico director

 Gloucestershire Airport Shareholder Representative on the Shareholder Forum (finance) which 
means supporting the Leader in his role as shareholder

Page 34



Appendix 4

Proposed Executive Board – Areas of Accountability

Executive Director – People and Change

KEY AREAS OF ACCOUNTABILITY

 Accountability for internal transformation (people, process and practice) and ensuring that the 
authority, across all its services, delivers first class customer service

 Digital champion and lead commissioner for Publica (ICT and HR/Learning and Development, 
Health and Safety)

 Accountable for leading and working collaboratively with the Executive Board to achieve a 
modern workplace with a sustainable future operating model where staff have the 
competencies, skills, behaviours, capabilities to deliver and operate and behave according to 
the authority’s values

 Executive Board lead for a number of key organisational strategies; people, learning and 
development, digital, customer 

 Lead for corporate strategy, performance management, corporate governance and risk 
management

 Ensures the place agenda and growth is inclusive and delivers sustainable and flourishing 
communities

 Working collectively with our partners and using our combined resources effectively to make 
the greatest difference to people’s lives and support people and communities to be more 
resilient and self-sufficient

 Accountable for corporate communications and the authority’s website and for developing the 
latter to support the more efficient and effective delivery of services to the public

 Accountable for a business change team with a focus on creating the right conditions to 
incubate and develop new commercial ideas/opportunities, project management support, 
business case and business analysis capabilities, service review support e.g. lean, client 
support for commissioned services

 Contributes to financial sustainability through a more efficient and effective operating model, 
seeking to reduce cost as well as growing revenue through creating the right organisational 
conditions and capabilities to incubate new ideas and develop new ways of raising income

Page 35



Appendix 4

Proposed Executive Board – Areas of Accountability

Director – Corporate Projects (part-time transitional role)

KEY AREAS OF ACCOUNTABILITY

 Sponsorship for the delivery of key corporate projects including accommodation strategy, town 
hall redevelopment, depot rationalisation, Arle Nursery, North Place redevelopment, Cakebridge 
Place.

 Key role in working with external partners including The Cheltenham Trust, Cheltenham 
Borough Homes, Gloucestershire County Council, Cheltenham Town Football Club etc.

 Engagement and support to cabinet members in the delivery of projects within respective 
portfolio areas

 Engagement more broadly with all members within CBC regarding the delivery of key strategic 
projects

 Accountable for sound project governance and decision with regard to key projects

 Reports to Executive Director – Finance and Assets

Page 36


	Agenda
	3 Approve minutes of last meeting
	Minutes

	4 Executive Board Restructure - Formal Consultation Feedback
	2018_01_29_APP_Executive_Restructure_appendix_2
	2018_01_29_APP_Executive_Restructure_Appendix_3A
	2018_01_29_APP_Executive_Restructure_Appendix_3b
	2018_01_29_APP_Executive_Restructure_appendix_4


